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The Clifton Furnace is a cold blast charcoal furnace set in the side of a steep
bank (as are all iron furnaces of this type), overlooking the Jackson River in
scenic Rainbow Gap, one mile south of the city of Clifton Forge. It is situated
within a Virginia Department of Highways right-of-way with U. §. Route 220

located on the slope above it and the Chesapeake and Ohio Railroad immediately

in front of it. The furnace is a typical example of the many found in Virginia's
piedmont and mountain areas. Built of large, rough-hewn, rectangular stones, the
sides and face taper towards the top. The width of its base is approximately
thirty-four feet and the width of the flue opening is approximately eight-and-one-
half feet. Like its sides, the jambs of the furnace mouth are tapered in a gentle
curve towards the top., Above the flue opening the back wall of the mouth is
corbeled to the lintel. The top of the furnace, or charging floor, is level with
the highway roadbed, and a small wayside there enables visitors to walk towards
the top of the flue where the ore was melted, At the wayside is a bronze plaque
erected in 1956 by the Rainbow Ridge Chapter of the Daughters of the American
Revolution, which provides a brief history of the furnace.

Although the furnace receives little or no maintenance, and is much overgrown,

it survives in a generally good state of preservation. It is the only surviving
structure of a once-busy operaticen. The imnediately adjacent areas are potential
archaeological sites and may yield artifacts and foundations that could tell more
about Virginia's early iron industry.
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Located in the scenically beautiful Rainbow Gap, one of the Commonwealth's most out-
standing natural foxmations, Clifton Furnace is rich in historical associations.
Here, during the mid-nineteenth century, was concentrated a significant portion of
Alleghany County's iron industry, the foundation of much of the areas early economy.
It was this site that provided the name fer nearby Clifton Forge, a major railroad
junction and division point and one of the principal cities of western Virginia.
Although the forge operation was located in Rainbow Gap, Clifton Forge Post Office
and depot was situated north of the Jackson River in the area now known as Clifton-

dale Park, east of the present city.
formerly the village of Williamson.

What is now the city of Cliftoen Forge was
In 1882, when the Richmond and Alleghany

Railroad was completed to Williamson and joined with the Virginia Central Railroad,
the name of the junction was changed from Williamson to Clifton Forge.

By 1800 the demand for iron was so great in Virginia that the whole eastern portion

of the Appalachians became dotted with charcoal-fired iron furnaces.

Although now

dormant, Virginia's iron industry once formed a significant portion of the state's
Alleghany County was especlally rich in iron deposits, amd by the 1820s
several furnaces had been established in the vicinity where the Jackson and Cowpasture

economy .

Rivers converge to form the James.
as carly as 1822 at Rainbow Gap.

A forge producing wrought iron
The operation proved to be so successful that in

was 1n operation

1846 its owner, William Lyle Alexander decided to produce pig iron from the same

ore mined nearby.

cold blast charcoal furnace overlooking the scenic gap.

William Alexander was a native of Rockbridge County.
there, Clifton, provided the name for his industry.

The stone structure erected for this purpose is the existing

The name of his family farm
Prior to his taking over the

operation of the Clifton forge and furnace, Alexander was associated with John
Jordan, a noted builder and iron maker from Lexington who had set up several furnaces
in the region.

For eight years pig iron was produced at the (¢lifton furnace at the rate of two-and-

one-half to three tons a week.

However, during this period wrought iron increcased

in demand over pig iron and the furnace went out of blast in 1854 though the forge

continued to operate.

abandoned in 1877.

The structure was revamped in 1874 with thé expectation

that it might again go into blast but it never did. The furnacc was completely

Today the massive stone structure stands as the only reminder of a once busy place.

Located within a highway right -~of-way, on the slope between U.S. 220 and the
the overgrown stones symbolize both a vanished
Virginia industry and the beginnings of a -prosperous city.

Chesaprake and Ohio Railread,
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